
MINUTES 
           

PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 

Mark Pusich, Chair 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
December 27, 2005 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Mark Pusich called the Regular Meeting of the City and Borough of Juneau Planning 
Commission, held in the Assembly Chambers of the Municipal Building, to order at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present: Michael Satre, Nancy Waterman, Maria Gladziszewski, Linda Snow, 

Dan Bruce, Marshal Kendziorek, Jacqueline Fowler, Mark Pusich 
 
Commissioners absent:  Frank Rue 
 
A quorum was present. 
 
Staff present: Dale Pernula, CDD Director; Susana Montana, CDD Planner; Teri 

Camery, CDD Planner 
 

II.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 
December 13, 2005 - Regular Meeting 
 
MOTION – by Ms. Waterman, to approve the December 13, 2005 Planning Commission meeting 
minutes, with corrections. 
 
There being no objection, it was so ordered. 
 
III.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS - None 
 
IV.  PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORT - None 
 
Chair Pusich noted that Assemblyman Robert Doll the PC Liaison was not present.  
 
V.  RECONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS - None 
 
VI.  CONSENT AGENDA
 
Chair Pusich announced there was one item on the Consent Agenda and inquired if there was 
public comment on those items.  No one came forward and no one from the Commission had 
questions. 

Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting December 27, 2005 Page 1 of 5 
 



 
MOTION – by Mr. Kendziorek, to approve the consent agenda per staff’s recommendation with 
an advisory condition, as presented. 
 
There being no objection, it was so ordered, and the item below was approved. 
 
USE2005-00054 
An Allowable Use permit for a 10,000 square foot, two-story warehouse for secondary seafood 
processing. 
Location: 5731 Concrete Way 
Applicant: Alaska Seafood Company 
 
Staff recommendation that the Planning Commission adopts the Director’s analysis and findings 
and grant the requested Allowable Use permit.  The permit would allow the development of a 
two-story, 1,000-foot facility for the secondary processing and packaging of seafood products.  
The approval is subject to the following condition: 
 1) Advisory Condition:  A site plan showing that all exterior lighting conforms to the 

requirements of CBJ §499.40.230(d) must be approved as part of the building 
permit for any development on the subject parcel. 

 
VII. CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - None 
 
VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 
 
IX.  REGULAR AGENDA
 
INQ-0000002 
Juneau Coastal Management Program Review of Public Draft. 
Location: None 
Applicant: CBJ Community Development 
 
Staff report  
Teri Camery reported the memo from Gabrielle LaRoche of LaRoche + Associates Juneau 
Coastal Management Plan (JCMP) Public Hearing draft that was released for the 30-day review 
on December 9, 2005 (on file at CBJ).  She reported the public review period would end on 
January 9, 2006.  She said public testimony was to be received at the PC meeting tonight, but 
added the City would continue to receive written testimony until January 9, 2006.  Ms. Camery 
said they were not seeking action by the Planning Commission (PC) tonight, but instead they 
were holding a hearing to receive public comment.  Ms. Camery said after the public comment 
period ends, staff would provide a revised draft of the JCMP to the PC on January 24, 2006.   
 
Ms. Waterman noted Page 6 was missing, and she requested the enclosed charts be legible.  Mr. 
Pusich said there were also Appendices missing, which he attempted to download and was 
unable to do so, as they were too large.  Ms. Camery agreed that the documents were large, older 
files, so offered to provide them via hardcopy to the Commissioners.  She added that Ms. 
LaRoche would attempt to break apart some of the larger files into smaller documents for 

Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting December 27, 2005 Page 2 of 5 
 



downloading purposes.  Mr. Pernula pointed out that the pages missing were illegible and were 
located in the Juneau Wetland Management Plan (JWMP) on Page 6, and not in the JCMP, 
which was also the case pertaining to the missing Appendices.  Ms. Camery said she would 
ensure those portions were corrected in the JCMP. 
 
Ms. Waterman referred to Page 3 of the JCMP, and asked if the Long Range Waterfront Plan 
(LRWP) was incorporated, as the JCMP referred to Long Range Waterfront studies or 
Downtown Waterfront ANSA.  Ms. Camery clarified that the current LRWP is a separate 
planning effort, and Ms. LaRoche was referring to the old LRWP that was the basis of the 
special waterfront areas they currently had in the JCMP now, which was different from the 
planning effort over the past several years.  Ms. Waterman clarified that the current effort was 
not reflected in the JCMP.  Ms. Camery said yes.  Ms. Gladziszewski said that considering the 
Commissioners were confused on that issue that it might be beneficial to have the information 
clarified by date. 
 
Ms. Waterman referred to Natural Hazards on Page 46, which she believed CBJ Risk 
Management staff had been working on some of those issues, so she suggested Ms. Camery 
contact them to see if they had updated information. 
 
Public testimony - None 
 
Public testimony was closed. 
 
There was no action required by the PC on the JCMP update at the PC meeting. 
 
CBJ Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
Mr. Pernula said the Comprehensive Plan update was recently placed on the priority list.  He 
noticed as the Assembly was interviewing the new PC members, the question that was 
consistently asked was, “What would you do to update the Comprehensive Plan?”  There were a 
variety of answers provided, so Mr. Pernula asked the Mayor why in particular he wanted to deal 
with that issue right now.  The Mayor said the last thorough update was in 1995, so he felt the 
Comprehensive Plans was due for an update. 
 
Mr. Pernula said the Comprehensive Plan contains good policies that are timeless, and a few of 
the implementing actions are somewhat dated.  The worst sections are the mapping elements.  
Staff now has new information and technology with LIDAR Imagery to improve the process of 
updating the Comprehensive Plan that allows staff to develop two-foot contour maps of the 
topography around Juneau.   
 
Mr. Pernula would first like to complete a review of the Comprehensive Plan, and then develop a 
program to update the Plan.  He would like to hire consultants to complete some of the mapping 
work.  The second year they would need fewer consultants, and have more staff and PC 
involvement.  He felt the appropriate time to begin the process was now, as they have support 
from the Assembly, and for the first time in two years, the Community Development Department 
is fully staffed.  Mr. Kendziorek agreed that the City was overdue for an update to the 

Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting December 27, 2005 Page 3 of 5 
 



Comprehensive Plan.  His greatest concern is not having adequate staff and/or funding to 
correctly complete the process.   
 
Mr. Pernula provided the PC with their one-page 2003 PC Priority List, as well as their original 
two-page list.  Mr. Pernula said pertaining to the priority lists, the PC has the Mitigation Bank 
almost in place, the Parking Plan is moving forward, and Code Simplification that is the Title 49 
Project is also underway.  Mr. Pernula referred to the second category on the list, and felt some 
of those items pertained to the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Mr. Bruce asked if the West Douglas Industrial Plan (WDIP) was within the Comprehensive 
Plan.  Ms. Fowler said the WDIP was not adopted when the Comprehensive Plan was put 
together.  Mr. Pernula agreed, stating the WDIP was adopted only two weeks ago. 
 
Chair Pusich said in the past when the PC updated the Comprehensive Plan, they did so with 
Committee of the Whole (COW) meetings.  They met on each topic to be modified or updated.  
Mr. Pernula said his first questions was if the process was timely, and the second question if they 
should complete a review of the Plan over the next couple of months, and if that would be done 
by a Committee or the PC sitting as a COW.  Mr. Bruce preferred the COW, as the 
Comprehensive Plan is an important document and it is important to allow for all of the 
Commissioner’s input.  Mr. Pernula said his intention was that prior to each of the COW 
meetings, he would provide an agenda of one part of the Comprehensive Plan to review the 
policies and information.  He felt the policies would not require much updating.   The portions of 
the Plan pertaining to the population, the land use economic projections, and where they would 
be located would all require updating.   
 
It was the consensus of the PC to hold the COW meetings on updating the Comprehensive Plan 
every third Thursday from 5:30 to 7:30 p.m. each month.   
 
Chair Pusich asked Susana Montana to share her past experience with the PC on how she might 
recommend they move forward with the process.  Ms. Montana said the live implementation 
action they might need to complete is extensive research in order to provide a status report to the 
PC.  The PC would then choose which implementation actions staff should pursue.  When staff 
receives the data from the mapping effort, and staff layers the information to determine which 
land is buildable, and the prioritization of what land should be zoned Residential, Commercial, 
etc.  The residual of all the constraints would be the buildable land, which is when they could 
begin to hold community meetings. 
 
Chair Pusich felt that Mr. Pernula was on the right track, and updating the Comprehensive Plan 
process should begin in order for the community of Juneau to grow in the right direction. 
 
X. BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - None 
 
XI.  OTHER BUSINESS - None 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting December 27, 2005 Page 4 of 5 
 



XII. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson assignment for the Title 49 Committee 
 
Chair Pusich said he selected Mr. Kendziorek as the Chairperson, and Ms. Waterman as the Vice 
Chairperson to the Title 49 Committee, and he said his decision was based on seniority to the 
PC.  Mr. Kendziorek and Ms. Waterman both agreed to their appointments. 
 
XIII. REPORT OF REGULAR AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
 
Ms. Snow reported the Lands Committee met last Monday and Kirby Day of Collaboration 
Juneau asked that the City consider utilizing the Cruise Ship Head Tax funds to complete a 
resident opinion and attitude survey on the tourism industry.  She said that Marie Palmer from 
the Juneau Convention and Visitors Bureau said the last survey of that type was completed in 
2002, but there have been changes since then.  Ms. Snow said the McDowell Group presented 
the Cruise Ship Visitors Profile for 2005.  The statistics were close to the same as last year, with 
one exception when they asked residents for their attitudes about their experiences and if they 
were satisfied.  She said that satisfaction dropped this year from 2003 in the areas of customer 
service, and community friendliness, which she felt that was somewhat troublesome.   
 
Ms. Snow said the Lands Committee heard another presentation by the Juneau Homeless 
Coalition.  They discussed some areas that Juneau should work on, and one in particular was 
additional transportation options.  She said the Coalition was attempting to obtain a Health & 
Social Services (H&SS) block grant for a population threshold that Juneau does not have, such as 
Anchorage and Fairbanks; therefore, the Coalition is attempting to collectively consolidate all of 
Southeast Alaska to break the threshold for the grant. 
 
XIV. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
The Commissioners exchanged holiday greetings. 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT
 
MOTION – by Mr. Bruce, to adjourn the meeting. 
 
There being no objection, the meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 

Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting December 27, 2005 Page 5 of 5 
 





Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 3 of 26 

 
VII. CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - None 
 
VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 
 
IX.  REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Chair Pusich announced an agenda item change, to move INQ-0000002 from Other Business to the first 
item of the Regular Agenda portion of the meeting. 
 
INQ-0000002 
Public and Planning Commission Testimony for the Juneau Coastal Management Program. 
Location: None 
Applicant: CBJ Community Development 
 
Staff report 
Ms. Camery noted there was an error in the advertising and the wording on the agenda, as the intent was 
not to take public testimony at the meeting because they already did so at the December 27, 2005 PC 
meeting.  The Juneau Coastal Management Plan (JCMP) was released on December 9, 2005, and the 30-
day public comment period ended January 9, 2006.  The City did not receive any comments from private 
citizens, but they did receive comments from the agencies.  Comments from the state office of Project 
Management Permitting requested a 24-hour extension to the deadline, so their comments were received 
earlier today and were provided to the PC.  The PC was not required to take action at the meeting.  Ms. 
Camery said she would be back in front of the PC at the January 24, 2006 meeting, with City consultant 
Gabrielle LaRoche of LaRoche + Associates.  They would provide a detailed summary of the public 
draft review comments and final version of the JCMP.  At that time, they would also seek the PC 
recommendation of approval, and then the Plan would be presented to the Assembly at their February 
13, 2006 meeting. 
 
Chair Pusich called for public testimony, as that was not corrected and was still advertised and listed on 
the agenda. 
 
Public testimony - None 

(Note:  Written comments were provided to, and on file at CBJ.  They were received from DEC; 
Jackie Timothy, Habitat Biologist, State of Alaska; Sally Russell Cox, Planner III, Division of 
Community Advocacy; and David Easter, DNR, OPMP comments.) 

 
Public testimony was closed. 
 
Commission action 
No action was required by the PC at the meeting. 
 
USE2005-00058 
A Conditional Use permit for a new seasonal aerial zipline tour at the old Treadwell mine site. 
Location:  South Douglas 
Applicant:  Alaska Canopy Adventures 
 
Staff report 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 4 of 26 

Ms. Montana provided a PowerPoint presentation (on file at CBJ).  She said the project was a recreation 
aerial conveyance with associated facilities’ pursuant to CBJ §49.25.3000, Subsection 6.270 of the CBJ 
Land Use Code, in a Rural Reserve Zoning District located on a 34-acre portion of the 153-acre 
Treadwell Mine in the South Douglas area.  The Site would be located approximately 4,000 feet east of 
the St. Ann’s Avenue terminus.  The access to the Site would be by landing craft via Gastineau Channel 
from a Juneau float landing, with contractor access from St. Ann’s Avenue via the Treadwell Trail. 
 
Ms. Montana was remiss in not providing information on the project to the HRAC, and she apologized.  
She has since talked to them regarding their concerns to ensure the guests do not handle any historic 
resources, such as portions of the buildings or equipment.  Those would be visually cleaned so they are 
apparent.  In some cases, they might need to be moved closer to where the guest could view them.  If 
they were unable to do so, they would attempt to salvage the historic resource and/or possibly relocate 
them to a museum. 
 
Ms. Waterman clarified that the permanent year-round structures consisted of cables, platforms and one 
building.  Ms. Montana said yes, and there would also be one building on skids that would be hauled 
away via boat at the end of the season, and there were permanent bunkers that are historic structures. 
 
Mr. Kendziorek asked if the Douglas Advisory Board (DAB) was provided the opportunity to comment.  
Ms. Montana said staff did meet with the DAB prior to the application process.  They also met again last 
night and she and the Applicant provided the DAB a presentation.  She did not receive official comment 
from the DAB, but the members of the Board and public were able to provide their comments.  Chair 
Pusich asked if there was a motion by the DAB to endorse the project.  Ms. Montana said no.   
 
Mr. Rue asked if staff sought alternative methods to dispose of human waste and construction material 
from the Site.  Ms. Montana deferred to the Applicant to respond to that later. 
 
Ms. Snow recalled the City was looking into certain trails that might be utilized for commercial 
activities, and the designation of certain trails that should be off limits to commercial activities.  She 
asked if there had been a recommendation made regarding the Treadwell Trail.  Ms. Montana said the 
City Parks and Recreational Department (PRD) staff indicated the portion of the Treadwell Trail within 
the City property was identified to allow Commercial Use.  The private property of the City Trail was 
not part of the Trail Plan, but could be used for Commercial Use.  Ms. Gladziszewski asked if the City 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee (PRAC) was consulted.  Ms. Montana said no, they just 
worked through staff, as Mr. Bob Grochow the City Parks and Landscape Department (PLD) 
Superintendent indicated he did not have a problem with the project.  Ms. Waterman asked if staff spoke 
to the PRD Director about the process that might be necessary to permit that type of Commercial Use on 
the Treadwell Trail.  Ms. Montana said she had not spoken with the Director, and deferred the response 
to the Applicant’s representative.  She added that when the land was transferred to the CBJ, there was an 
easement that was granted to AJT for vehicular use of that trail. 
 
Public testimony 
 
Murray Walsh, 2974 Foster Avenue, Juneau, AK  99801, the representative for the Applicant Brien 
Salazar, President, Alaska Canopy Adventures (ACA), P.O. Box 5425, Ketchikan, AK 99901, and the 
AJT Mining Properties, 500 Sheep Creek Mine Road, Juneau, AK 99801.  Mr. Walsh said the Applicant 
and his partners developed the canopy tours that have been a success in Ketchikan the past summer, 
which propelled them to attempt the same operation in Juneau.   



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 5 of 26 

 
Mr. Walsh said the Applicant was satisfied with staff’s work on the application.  He said they are 
comfortable with the Conditions to the application. 
 
Mr. Walsh said the boats would not be dragged up on the beach, as they would be utilizing landing 
crafts that would arrive at the beach and drop the ramp to allow passengers to walk off, and returning 
passengers would walk on the landing craft.  Mr. Pusich asked the Applicant if he would be subject to a 
Condition that would limit the tour to the landing craft-only type of transportation to the Site.  Mr. 
Salazar said yes.  Mr. Pusich said they would have limitations pertaining to the use of landing crafts on 
the perspective beach location, as they may have some degree of tidal constraints.  Mr. Walsh said the 
beach was steeper around the corner, so at low tide that would be the landing location. 
 
Mr. Walsh said, with regard to the subject of alternative methods to remove human waste, the pump 
trucks that would be utilized are single-axle vehicles and would not be able to drive on the beach, so 
they felt the method they were proposing was the only available alternative.  Mr. Pusich also mentioned 
he has been involved in sanitary sewer removal situations, whereby they pumped through several 
hundred feet of pipe with a remote tank on the beach that had a hose that could be dragged a certain 
distance to be pumped, which they might consider an alternative method for disposal of the waste.  Mr. 
Walsh said they could look into that, but the only other method was to take a large landing craft with a 
sewer truck over on it, which would be expensive and he did not feel the sewer truck could drive easily 
over the cobbles.  Ms. Waterman said the Historic District in Last Chance Basin has a restroom with a 
piping facility that flows down the hill and across the bridge, with the waste pumping truck servicing 
that restroom from the landside, so the Applicant might look into that type of system.  Mr. Salazar said, 
if the pump truck were to arrive once per week that it might take two or three minutes to traverse the 
Treadwell Trail from St. Ann’s Avenue to their Site. That would be five to six minutes per week that a 
vehicle would be on the trail structure, but Mr. Salazar felt that would be a modest amount of time.  Mr. 
Walsh said they agreed with the scheduling, whereby the truck would arrive at a predictable time of day 
during normal business hours on a Monday, Tuesday or Wednesday for the four months of the year they 
plan to operate, so most people would be at work during that time. 
 
Mr. Bruce asked what the rights are of the AJT property owner pertaining to use of the City portion of 
the Treadwell Trail.  Mr. Walsh stated when AJT or its predecessor company sold the Douglas 
Treadwell and AJT property to the City; the Right-of-Ways (ROWs) were specified that AJT would 
keep the ROW to utilize the Treadwell Trail to access its own property.  The ROW was assignable to 
others, and AJT would be assigning a portion of those ROWs to ACA.  Mr. Bruce asked what the 
language was of the easement that was reserved by AJT.  Mr. Walsh said it was wide-ranging and 
provided AJT a great deal of latitude. 
 
Ms. Gladziszewski said there were concerns regarding noise, and the staff reported that the ATVs were 
not expected to generate noise that would be discernable at the property line, and asked how confident 
they were of that.  Mr. Walsh said there would be six ATVs on the Site at full build out of the project, 
which are low-powered six-wheelers that are slow moving, low geared and are able to climb hills.  Mr. 
Walsh said the ATVs would take people quietly up the hillside in a way that does not frighten the guests 
or disturb the landscape, so he felt noise would not be problem.  Mr. Salazar said that in Ketchikan they 
operate their canopy tour next to a residential area that is 150 feet from homes, and they have received 
compliments from the local residents stating it was a quiet, eco-friendly tour, and was one of the few 
methods to get people out into the forest without building additional trails or disturbing the land. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 6 of 26 

Ms. Waterman referenced walk-in clients and asked how the Applicant might handle that opportunity.  
Mr. Walsh said that providing parking for an unknown amount of walk-in clients would pose problems, 
so they would take guests from the community, but they would be required to buy tickets from the kiosk 
on the mainland and take the landing craft to the Site along with the other guests.  Thereby, the 
Applicant would not be responsible for their parking, but could also control the guide to guest ratio.  He 
said there are two guides for a party of eight that they do not want to overload.   
 
Paul DeSloover, 6713 Sherri Street, Douglas, AK 99824, read his email provided to the PC members 
prior to the meeting (on file at CBJ).  Mr. DeSloover said he called the president of the Douglas 
Homeowner’s Association (DHA) earlier in the day, and he said he was unaware of the zipline project.  
Mr. DeSloover has been utilizing the trail system over 32 years and has witnessed less ambulatory 
people on the trails via motorized wheelchairs.  He would like to see deference provided by the PC to 
the Juneau people.  There are a lot of tourism and adventures, so if people wanted to see the trees, he felt 
they should utilize the Tram.  He felt the Juneau people were being squeezed with tourism adventures.  
He said another option could be to work with the City for use near the Eagle Crest area, as the City is 
attempting to generate revenue at that Site.  That road sees little use in the summer, with the exception 
of bicyclists, hikers and berry pickers.  He asked for serious consideration to the people of Juneau and 
Douglas, and asked that the public comment period be extended.  (Additional written comments 
provided on file at CBJ). 
 
Mike Peterson, 724 5th Street, Douglas, AK 99824, said he had several areas of concern and referenced 
the staff report as follows: 

? Page 4 of 10:  That St. Ann’s Avenue would not be used for parking, so by omission he felt that 
Sandy Beach would then become the default parking area. 

? Page 5 of 10:  His concern was the cleaning of gas operated ATV vehicles, and it was not 
addressed where a containment area might be located pertaining to fuel and oil spillage when 
they are being cleaned.   

? He said there are low tides expected during their summer operations, so he asked if the people 
would walk up to the area or would the ATVs pick them up on the beach, as he did not see 
alternate options listed. 

He then reference the attached ACA Project Narrative: 
? Page 2:  Pertaining to the Table of Marine Operations, he questioned the number of crossings 

that would occur from Juneau across the Channel to Mayflower past the Glory Hole to the 
private property.  He said there would be 14 trips per day times 30 days per month, which would 
be 420 crossings, times five months, which would equal 2,100 total trips.  He said those 
crossings would add to the layer of boat, airplane, and ship traffic already in the Channel.  He 
called the City Harbormaster’s office and they stated that was the first time they had heard of the 
project.  He then called the USCG, Port Operations and spoke to a Lt. Commander and he had 
not heard of the project either.  Mr. Peterson said he would like the Applicant to identify whom 
in the Juneau USGS and Harbormaster’s office they spoke with.  He later spoke to John Stone 
from the City Docks and Harbors, and they said that no one from the PC had contacted them 
about the zipline project, so Mr. Peterson felt the Applicant might also want to address that issue.  
Mr. Kendziorek asked Ms. Montana if she or other staff spoke to the USCG or the City Docks 
and Harbors personnel.  Ms. Montana said she personally spoke with the USCG on two separate 
occasions, and each time was with a different officer.  The first telephone call, she received a 
response that the increased traffic would not be a problem.  The next telephone call, she asked 
what radio channel frequency the landing crafts would utilize, and they provided her with a 
channel that she in turn provided to the Applicant’s representative.  She also spoke to the Docks 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 12 of 26 

b. A ground cover material that is impenetrable to liquids for the fueling area (like a 
concrete pad); 

c. A perimeter dike, lined depression or other system for preventing spills from seeping into 
the soil; and 

d. A sufficient supply of absorbent media (like kitty litter and towels) to capture and clean 
up any fuel or oil spills.  

6. The Applicant shall insure that access to the aerial cables by unauthorized persons is prevented; 
this shall include design and construction of the tree platforms in such a way as to prevent 
unauthorized entry onto the platforms from below, and the securing of the beginning and end 
stations to prevent unauthorized access. 

7. The Applicant shall insure that the tailings area of the Site which is to be used for guest hiking 
and/or ATV travel shall be delineated by a fence, rope or similar barrier; shall be maintained 
with a minimum of six inches of crushed rock (D-1) over the tailings material; and employees 
shall drive the ATVs carefully and slowly over the fill so as not to disturb the protective layer of 
soil. 

 
8. The Applicant shall retain historic resources located on the Site in an undisturbed state to 

the greatest extent practicable during construction and operation of the use.  When 
practical, the Applicant will “curate” the resource by making it visible, undisturbed, to 
tour guests and will have tour guides explain the historical significance of the feature to 
tour guests.  In the event the Applicant deems disturbance to an historic resource is 
unavoidable, s/he shall provide the CBJ Historic Resource Advisory Committee (HRAC), 
with at least 14 days notice prior to disturbance, the opportunity to photograph and 
otherwise record the resource that may be disturbed during construction or operation of 
the Project.  Such disturbance may include moving the resource so that tour guests may 
better view it.  The Applicant shall provide HRAC or their delegate(s) the opportunity to 
salvage any historic resource that the Applicant deems is necessary to remove or destroy to 
accommodate the proposed use. 

 
9. In order to reduce potential human and dog and construction truck conflicts, the Applicant 

shall post a notice at the entry gate to the Treadwell Trail at St. Ann’s Avenue terminus 
informing hikers of the dates and times of the day that construction trucks will travel the 
trail to the Site.  The Applicant shall insure that the sanitary sewer service provider that 
cleans the port-a-potties and the caretaker RV at the Site will travel the trail at a regular 
day of the week and a regular time of the day and the Applicant will post this day and time 
at the trail entrance to notify hikers of such traffic. 

 
Commission action 
Chair Pusich asked the Commissioners if they had questions for staff pertaining to the revised 
Conditions for the Applicant in the staff report. 
 
Mr. Kendziorek proposed a new Condition 10, that Alaska Canopy Adventures would only take clients 
and employees to their facility across Gastineau Channel via their boat, with marine access only once 
the facility is built.  Mr. Pusich said Mr. Walsh felt strongly that the existing proposal is that the 
Applicant would insure the transportation to and from the adventure be via marine waters, but agreed 
with Mr. Kendziorek’s newly proposed Condition 10.  Mr. Rue also agreed. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 13 of 26 

Mr. Kendziorek asked that staff locate the language pertaining to the easement.  Mr. Rue said one of the 
issues raised was the potential of employees parking at St Ann’s Avenue, so that might become a 
conflict and he likened that to what happened before at the fish plant at Auke Bay.  He asked staff 
pertaining to the easement if they had any concerns, and if somehow the proposed operation might 
violate that.  Mr. Kendziorek’s concern was if they added a blanket right to the easement, so asked if 
that might be too restrictive.  Ms. Montana said they would need to see the language to determine what 
uses the mining company had, but staff has not had the opportunity to delve into that.  She said the 
Applicant’s lawyers are reviewing that now. 
 
Mr. Bruce proposed a new Condition 11, that the permit will be conditioned upon the Applicant 
demonstrating that its use is within the scope of its reserved easement.  Mr. Pusich said that seemed 
reasonable.  Mr. Satre asked if the language was not in the easement, and if the Trail was open to 
Commercial Use, would they still need to obtain a permit from PRD to use the trail for access.  Mr. 
Pernula said staff would have to approach PRD to determine that, and if the Condition became a 
problem, they could bring it back to the PC at that time.  Mr. Rue preferred that approach. 
 
MOTION – by Mr. Bruce to approve USE-2005-00058 and adopt staff’s recommendations and findings 
and conditionally-grant the requested Conditional Use permit.  The permit would allow the development 
of a summer recreational facility, zipline tour, at the Treadwell Mine as described in the permit 
application, with additional Conditions 10 and 11; plus Conditions 8 and 9 that were added prior to the 
meeting. 
 
FRIENDLY AMENDMENT – by Ms. Gladziszewski wished to clarify Condition 9, to re-write the 
second sentence to read as follows, “The Applicant shall insure that the sanitary sewer service provider 
that cleans the port-a-potties and the caretaker RV at the Site will travel the trail at a regular day of the 
week and a regular time of the day once a week on a weekday during business hours and the Applicant 
will post this day and time at the trail entrance to notify hikers of such traffic.  Mr. Bruce agreed to the 
friendly amendment. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
Yeas  Satre, Gladziszewski, Kendziorek, Waterman, Bruce, Rue, Snow, Pusich 
Nays   
 
Motion passes 8:0. 
 
Recess from 9:03 to 9:10 p.m. 
 
Mr. Pusich noted a conflict of interest pertaining to all of the Home Depot applications and stepped 
down, and turned the meeting over to Vice Chair Bruce. 
 
SUB2005-00055 
A major subdivision of Tract A & B of USS 7297; and Tract A-4, A.S.L.S. 2004-22 into Tracts 1, 2, 3 
and 4 of HDK Subdivision. 
Location: Lemon Creek Tract 
Applicant: City & Borough of Juneau 
 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 14 of 26 

Staff report  
Mr. Bishop provided a staff report and PowerPoint presentation (on file at CBJ).  He said given the 
interconnectedness of all the proposals that were before the PC pertaining to Home Depot, he preferred 
to discuss the project as a whole, and then move forward.  The Commissioners agreed.  He said the 
major subdivision was located behind the Costco area that consisted of two parcels of City land and one 
parcel of private land owned by A.N. Kaiser Family Limited Partnership, which was being split into four 
parcels.  In addition to SUB2005-00055, also in front of them was USE2005-00056 that was a request 
for a Conditional Use permit for the Home Depot retail sale center in an Industrial Zoning District, and 
associated with that was VAR2005-00059 to reduce the number of parking spaces from 629 to 481. 
 
Mr. Bishop said staff was recommending a Condition for the corridor through the subdivision, within 
Lot 1 of the Kaiser tract.  He said Lot 1 was statutory wetlands, with anadromous fish stream in it.  He 
said Home Depot recognizes the wetland constraints and the need for an easement for a ROW through 
that parcel, so they have offered to dedicate that parcel to the City for the purposes of the ROW and 
habitat protection.  There was no guarantee that would happen until such time when the land 
transactions took place.  Therefore, staff was recommending a Condition guaranteeing the dedication of 
the floating easement for such purposes of a ROW through that property, should that dedication not take 
place.  If the dedication does take place prior to final platting, that Condition would then be vacated or 
then be deemed not necessary.   
 
He said staff has further recommended that the Applicant be responsible for developing a stormwater 
management program that looked at conveying those waters to Vanderbilt Creek through a constructed 
wetland to mitigate for contaminants and attenuate water flows given its impaired status.  He said 
Vanderbilt Creek is recognized as one of the most productive small fish creeks in the Borough, so its 
impaired status needs to be accommodated. 
 
Mr. Bishop said a concern was expressed pertaining to the Lemon Creek Trail and the corridor.  He said 
the trail was currently located on City property, which travels through the Kaiser property and down 
below the Quigley the property, and then transfers out through City property onto Glacier Highway 
across from Western Auto.  He said it is a very old trail that is not very well utilized, with poor access, 
but is being improved.  The proposed cut would wipe out a fair section of the trial, so in recognizing 
that, Mr. Bishop recommended a Condition for the requirement for either routing the Lemon Creek Trail 
up and around the cut to USFS standards for trails of that type, i.e., maintaining a sufficient, or not too 
steep of a grade, or a route through the cut accommodating for that.  After having discussions with some 
of the Commissioners, he was convinced that the Condition should not be either/or, but instead be a 
Condition requiring both the Condition of a new trailhead, plus a trail up to the existing trail, and the 
maintenance of the existing corridor.  Mr. Bishop recommended the change to Condition 2 for 
USE2005-00056 to read, “The Applicant shall reroute the Lemon Creek Trail around or through the 
cutback slope in a manner that meets the standards for the USFS trails of this type.  In addition, the 
Applicant will construct a new trailhead at the end of Commercial Boulevard with a link meeting USFS 
Standards to the existing trail.” 
 
Ms. Waterman asked regarding the pinch point between Lot 1 and Lot 2 by Vanderbilt Creek, and asked 
what the distance was between the two points.  Mr. Bishop said it was 80 feet, as that was what the City 
Engineering Department deemed necessary for that road corridor.  Ms. Waterman asked what the 
requirement was for the setback from the Creek for road construction.  Mr. Bishop did not have an 
answer, but added there was a setback for structures, and there were exceptions to that for roads and 
stream crossings.  Mr. Rue said he recalled the setback standard was 50 feet with a 25-foot no build, and 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 15 of 26 

asked if they discussed an easement for an alternative route to the north and into Lot 2 to avoid the 
Creek, as he wanted staff aware of that alternative early on so that option was not lost.  Mr. Bishop said 
it lines up with Jenkins Drive, so that an access corridor that could be developed.  He added there was a 
lot of work to be completed prior to determining the corridor alignment.  Mr. Rue clarified that he was 
suggesting they continue further to the east, so as not to infringe upon Vanderbilt Creek; otherwise, they 
would be going into private property.  Ms. Waterman said that now was the time as they subdivide the 
large tracts in that area to complete some land swapping to ensure that they preserve a transportation 
corridor.  She felt that Lot 2 would make a large difference allowing them to do that.  She said the only 
option is for some type of preservation of Lot 2, and clip the corner of Lot 3 so they do not bottle 
themselves in, which might disallow that option for what could become a considerable size corridor for 
the upper portion of Hidden Valley.  Mr. Bishop said they have preserved the ability to connect onto the 
existing road system within the Industrial Subdivision that would connect onto Jenkins Drive, or to cross 
over to Vanderbilt via the Western Auto area.  Ms. Waterman asked what the minimum size lot would 
be when they are subdividing four or fewer lots.  Mr. Bishop said, in the Industrial Zoning District those 
lots would be 20’ by 100’ that equates out to 2,000 square feet per lot.  Ms. Waterman asked if Lot 2 
might be as small as ½ acre.  Mr. Bishop said yes, and added that it could be considerably smaller than a 
½ acre.  Ms. Waterman suggested the pinch point where they have 80’ near the left-hand side of 
Vanderbilt Creek, if they put a horizontal line across Lot 2 making it only 1 acre versus 2 acres that they 
would then increase the corridor at that pinch point.  She said Lot 1 would then be increased by an acre, 
and Lot 2 would be decreased by an acre, in order to leave open an area for a larger corridor for the 
transportation option.  Mr. Bishop expects they would run into environmental concerns with the road 
corridor, and they would have to address and mitigate for those during that time.  If they cannot do so, 
they would have to direct all the traffic to Commercial Boulevard that would curl around and connect to 
the subdivision.  This would be the case if they were unable to adequately address impacts associated 
with road development at the headwaters of Vanderbilt.  Ms. Waterman said preserving Lot 2 for part of 
the corridor, even if they did use Commercial Boulevard, would provide for that option of a wide 
Commercial Boulevard until they can get to the rest of the corridor, wherever that might be.  Mr. Bishop 
said Commercial Boulevard would be at Collector’s Standards, and that was the capacity they would 
require, as they do not need anything larger than that.  They would have a 50’ ROW that would be 
platted in that area, which would be able to accommodate the traffic.  All being said, he felt there might 
not be the need for a wider ROW.   
 
Mr. Kendziorek asked for clarification pertaining to hydrology.  Mr. Bishop said a substantial study 
would take place to determine what the hydrologic conditions of the area are, and they would route the 
stormwater accordingly.  There is a great deal of discretion left to the City Planning Director on that 
Condition.  Mr. Kendziorek asked for more explicit language regarding to the ‘what’ and ‘why’ 
pertaining to the Condition, so it is clearer.  Mr. Bruce said that might be addressed further in the 
process versus tonight. 
 
Mr. Bishop concluded the proposed 481 requested parking spaces and associated improvements would 
be adequate, and were more in line with what should be required in their current parking standard.  He 
said it was the request by the PC that the Variance be pursued.  Ms. Gladziszewski asked how many 
parking spaces Fred Meyer, Kmart and Costco had.  Mr. Bishop said Kmart and Fred Meyer both had 
over 600 parking spaces, and he did not know how many Costco had.  Mr. Pernula interjected that 
Kmart had initially anticipated for an additional store further to the northwest side of the parking lot.  
Ms. Gladziszewski referred to the Home Depot study on parking in Chicago, and she said that was one 
of the highest volume stores in the whole country, so if they applied that study to this Juneau store the 
maximum parking required should be 403 versus 481 spaces.  Mr. Bishop said the City does not have a 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 16 of 26 

maximum-parking standard, only a minimum-parking standard.  He said he was not looking to impose a 
maximum parking requirement.  Mr. Pernula said an option was to grant them a Variance to what they 
applied for, as they could not reduce parking beyond that Variance without giving prior notice, etc.  It 
was the consensus of the Commissioners let the Applicant respond to the parking issues later in the 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Bishop was directed by the PC to only review the new Conditions pertaining to USE2005-00055.  
Mr. Bishop said he stated earlier in his staff report the change pertaining to Condition 2, which was in 
reference to the Lemon Creek Trail.  A new Condition 10 would read, “The Applicant shall construct 
Holdsworth Drive for the full distance of the eastern property line of the proposed Home Depot as 
shown in the attached section, and as approved by the CBJ Engineering Department following receipt of 
the final construction drawing.”  Mr. Bishop said that was a requirement for construction of a 56’ bench 
road behind Home Depot that would accommodate the eventual connection to the Industrial Subdivision 
and beyond.  He said this would be whether it was the link from Commercial Boulevard, or a link 
though the Vanderbilt corridor, or a combination of those two.  The new Condition 10 was to reduce the 
need of having to revisit the backslope once again after the City begins the construction of the road 
corridor, which would be a significant excavation.  There would be negotiations with the Applicant for 
the cost sharing of that construction. 
 
Mr. Bruce called on the Applicant representatives. 
 
Arthur Richey, 1323 East 71st Street, Suite 120, Tulsa, OK 74136, representing the Applicant Home 
Depot.  He introduced Brian Canard, 375 Corporate Drive North, Tukwila, WA, 98188, as the Home 
Depot real estate manager, David Kincaid as the Home Depot project manager responsible for the 
project oversight during construction, bidding, selection of general contractors, and approval of general 
and subcontractors.  Mike Story and Erin Howell were civil engineers with R&M Engineering, 12069 
Cross Street, Juneau, AK 99801 representing the Applicant, Tasha Atchison, 11730 118th Avenue, NE, 
Suite 600, Kirkland, WA 98034 with Transpo, Michael Reid with TENW and both were representing the 
Applicant as traffic consultants, and Bob Blasco with Robertson Eastaugh, et. al. the legal representative 
for the Applicant.   
 
Mr. Richey said they have worked closely with Messer’s Bishop and Gilbertson of the CBJ staff, and he 
felt they did a great job.  He said there have been questions pertaining to what the market the new Home 
Depot store would be in.  He referenced the detailed market analysis completed when forecasting the 
location for a store in Juneau, which determined that it would be a standard Home Depot store operation 
that would not be a downsized or a downscaled version.  The store would be 125,513 square feet, which 
is the size for a standard operation store for Home Depot across the country. 
 
Ms. Atchison said they prepared a series of traffic analysis that evaluated traffic impacts associated with 
Home Depot alone.  What they found with existing traffic levels on a weekday commute period and 
Saturday peak hours, was the need for a three-lane section, with sidewalks on both sides on Anka Street 
that would extend between Glacier Highway to Commercial Boulevard.  They were also proposing to 
add a right-turn lane in front of Wells Fargo Bank on Glacier Highway.  Mr. Kendziorek said three lanes 
were an odd number for traffic.  Ms. Atchison said it was a tight ROW in that area, so the three lanes 
were to best process traffic through the pinch point at the signal, which is regulated by the southbound 
lanes approaching that signal.  They then created the opportunity for two northbound lanes at the area 
where there was traffic splitting off onto Commercial Boulevard, rather than continuing through to Anka 
Street.  Mr. Kendziorek asked what the level of traffic service might be on a busy Saturday.  Ms. 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 17 of 26 

Atchison said level service B and that exceeds the standard of C, but added if they did not use the right-
turn lane, it would still remain standard C.  Although that would be the standard at the C level, there was 
concern expressed about the vehicles stacking back, so they agreed to build the right-turn lane to 
alleviate that.  Ms. Gladziszewski asked if there might be a problem turning left from Glacier Highway 
onto Anka Street.  Ms. Atchison said if they added a right turn lane, it would help with the left turn 
movement because that would now take the traffic in one lane and split it into two lanes.  Once that 
traffic clears, the left turn would have more opportunity to move more often, so that would shorten the 
cues in that lane.  Mr. Richey said they held a meeting earlier in the day with CBJ and DOT and they 
came to an agreement on the conceptual traffic design, but they have not yet worked out all of the 
construction drawings and details for the traffic project. 
 
Mr. Richey said municipalities across the country have different parking requirements.  On a national 
basis, what Home Depot likes to have would be 400 spaces in their front-field parking, which was based 
on 2,000 stores on a national level, and they take into account the parking spaces they would lose in the 
seasonal sales area of front-field parking that would consist of approximately 40 lost spaces.  The 
seasonal sales would be to sell Christmas trees in the fall and winter, or garden plants in the spring and 
summer, which was why they were requesting a total of 440 spaces.   
 
Mr. Richey said pertaining to operational considerations, such as light spilling over onto private property 
on the Quigley’s land, that by their own internal standards their lights are shielded and would not spill 
off the Home Depot property line.  Their regulated PA system would be located in the garden center, so 
it would not be on after certain hours.  They can unhook the backup beepers on their forklifts, so when 
they are outside and backing up that would not be a distraction.  The store was not anticipated to be open 
24 hours per day, so their truck deliveries would take place during normal business hours.   
 
Mr. Reid said in regards to the hydrology study that there was a concern that Vanderbilt Creek was not 
getting enough water, which was due to activities that have happened in the past.  A lot of the water now 
was not flowing to Vanderbilt Creek, so the discussion would be how much water was appropriate to get 
to that Creek.  He said ADF&G did not have that answer either, so that was one of the main purposes of 
the study.  They have the opportunity to take as much or as little water from the Home Depot site 
development, and added that currently all the water was ultimately flowing into Lemon Creek.  He said 
the bench road that would be built behind the Home Depot site would not be paved, but instead it would 
be a dirt road.  Mr. Rue said his concern pertained to Vanderbilt Creek, as they had the opportunity to 
enhance the creek stating they were at the head of a salmon stream that has been degraded.  He said 
depending on how the hydrology was worked he felt they could actually improve the current situation.  
He said they might consider constructing a wetland, so the parking and building roof runoff would flow 
into that wetland with an oil/water separator to feed that water into Vanderbilt Creek.  He also suggested 
they look at the possibility that part of the paving consist of porous pavers, which is an issue in Juneau 
due to the freezing and thawing, but he felt that might work in their low use areas.  Mr. Richey said they 
might prefer to eliminate the parking on the north side of the building, and possibly shift the store up in 
that direction, thereby increasing the landscaping on the south side. Mr. Reid felt that scenario might be 
possible.  Mr. Richey said they are required by Condition 1 to complete a hydrologic study that reflects 
what happened causing the dilemma with Vanderbilt Creek.  He said they would also be looking at the 
bench road being constructed behind the store and what impact that may have on the water in relation to 
the Creek, so they already planned for the roof water to be directed to Vanderbilt Creek.  Ms. Waterman 
said that Lot 1 was under consideration for donation to the CBJ, so she asked how they felt about 
enlarging that opportunity to contribute and work with the City to enhance the wetlands, and receive 
some publicity credit for that.  Mr. Richey said they have been working with Mr. Gilbertson the City 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 18 of 26 

Lands/Resources manager to arrive at a scenario that would be beneficial for both CBJ and Home 
Depot, which accounts for a future plan to construct a road to alleviate traffic as that area continues to 
develop.  He said they have a follow-up meeting tomorrow to continue that process.  Mr. Canard said a 
portion of the property that they agreed to donate; it made a lot of sense to do that because it was not 
commercially developable property.  He said there were valuable wetlands at the head of a very 
important creek, and the balance of that Commercial Zoned property was what they were counting on to 
offset the rest of the property they were acquiring from Home Depot and Kaiser.  He said it was perhaps 
a swap, but if it were to be an outright donation, it would have a large impact on their economic formula.  
He said in order to complete a second access route, if that was the preferred alternative, that would 
provide them the opportunity to own those wetlands to preserve them and preserve the integrity of 
Vanderbilt Creek allowing for improvements.  There is a Condition to require and 80’ ROW, so they 
could not extract those seven acres of property.  He said, as part of the land transaction that would go 
before the Assembly, Home Depot has agreed to donate the property and they could make that a 
condition of the land sale, so that could accomplish a few goals by being able to preserve options for 
roads, and preserve wetlands.  What they have done with Lot 2 is take uplands that could be developed, 
which has valuable frontage on Commercial Boulevard.  Mr. Rue said, as part of the hydrologic 
analysis, they might consider the runoff water from the roof and the parking lot pertaining to Lot 2, 
whereby they could construct a wetland or swale system to take some of the parking lot water runoff 
through that, so it would be intercepted prior to running into the creek.  Mr. Bruce questioned whether or 
not there was a need to adequately protect Lot 2 pertaining the water and the hydrology of Vanderbilt 
Creek, or could they do that with Lot 1.  Mr. Gilbertson said in 1983, the USF&WS requested that the 
City take the drainage and direct it to Lemon Creek.  He said they now have a rectangular type of water 
area that they should be able to tilt in either direction pertaining to the hydrologic study, which is 
important.  He said after development is complete, the drainage pattern would be locked in place. 
 
Public Testimony 
 
Patrick Quigley, 5140 Glacier Highway, Juneau, AK  99801, said his property is along side the pinch 
point.  His family property is an off the grid, owner-built homestead prior to Statehood.  His property 
borders the water of Vanderbilt Creek.  He remains hopeful that the ruminant lands on that side of the 
Lemon Creek Valley would be safeguarded to balance the overwhelming development in the past 
decade.  Given the history over the past 50 years, he thought the homestead would last another 100 years 
allowing his children and grandchildren to have access to that land.  He now felt that was hopelessly 
delusional.  If they put in a road corridor along the side of his property, he said that would dramatically 
impact his property and Vanderbilt Creek.  He does not know how they would be able to get an 80’ road 
corridor and setback from the middle of the stream corridor that are Class A wetlands, and not have a 
major impact.  He felt there was no need for remediation for that land unless they cut it up.  If they do, 
only then would they need remediation because that would be self-induced.  If there was some other 
option allowing the cut to be less dramatic by using a different road corridor, then the re-routing of 
runoff water from the roofs and parking lots might be a benefit if it is within the confines of the existing 
slopes.  He said the reason USF&G did not know about the issues in that area was that they have not 
been there since 1993.  They need to see what is on the ground at that site to appreciate the 
consequences of the proposed projects.  He said the pinch point is located on the corner of his property 
that contains a main tributary with many rivulets, which drains into Vanderbilt Creek.  Pertaining to 
putting a road corridor through Lot 1, he felt that on one hand they were saying they would be protecting 
the habitat, but in fact they would be taking it away and that would be destructive.  If they moved the 
corridor to the right and then around, there might be some hope to maintain the headwaters of Vanderbilt 
Creek.  If the corridor is put in at the front of his house, down Lemon Creek Trail, up to Western Auto 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 19 of 26 

and it is 80’ wide, they would be creating a swath of destruction the whole length of that area.  He said 
that would also be in addition to eliminating the first mile of the Lemon Creek Trail.  He said, with the 
proposed corridor his family would hear constant truck traffic out of the Secon and CBJ queries, 7 days 
a week and 365 days a year.  He felt the real agenda was for the City to condemn his property, and then 
they could put the corridor in the uplands.  He said in his paranoid moments, he felt that was what the 
CBJ CDD staff wanted to do. 
 
Geoff Larson and Curtis Holmes, both representing the Alaskan Brewing Company, 5429 Shaune Drive, 
Juneau, AK, 99801.  Mr. Larson said that in regards to subdividing the property for Home Depot, they 
found the PC would have to deal with Lot 4 that was located behind Costco.  It was a large subdivision 
that consisted of several streets, neighborhoods and assorted businesses.  He said that area was one of 
the last Industrial Zoned areas in Juneau that was not wetlands.  He said they were seeking 10 to 15 
acres for a long-term plan for their production.  The area they are currently located at was tight.  Some 
of the benefits they could bring are options that the PC might defer to the City, but would be fewer 
infrastructures pertaining to roads, sewers, and the back bypass road.  He said they are becoming a 24-
hour operation, so that would reduce the load on the proposed three-lanes on Anka Street.  Their 
operation could be built up the hill and developed as the gravel is removed.  They could begin with the 
construction of a warehouse, and then slowly move into operations as the hill went up, which would 
eliminate many of the issues they were discussing tonight.  Part of the DOT study for the State of Alaska 
stated that after Home Depot, they were not going to allow any more development in that area, unless 
another road was put in.  He spoke to Mr. Bishop and he said although that is stated in the study, it 
might be different for a low-volume user, which he perceives their company to be.  As they grow, they 
become more efficient and require fewer employees, so that would produce more volume and have less 
traffic.  Mr. Kendziorek asked if they were not testifying on the application itself, but instead on Lot 4.  
Mr. Holmes said the problem is looking at Industrial Zoned land, but there are not any other options for 
an industrial user.  He said the question pertaining to planning is how do you create a diversified 
economic base within this community when you have a limited commodity.  Mr. Bruce asked them to 
restrict their comments so they are relevant to the application, in the interest of time, and asked if they 
were in favor, or opposed, or if they felt there was a condition that should be imposed that has not been 
previously discussed tonight.  He said there would be a lot of public hearings pertaining to any 
development on Lot 4, which they would receive notice pertaining to subdivision reviews that would 
provide them opportunity to testify on those issues.  Mr. Larson said it might be worthwhile writing into 
the language pertaining to the road easements, as that might not happen if something happened to Lot 4 
later on.  Mr. Holmes said there has been a cognitive decision process that removed the industrial land 
from being available.  Mr. Bruce said their discussion was beyond the scope of the PC meeting tonight, 
so the best time for them to appear before the PC was during the subdivision review process pertaining 
to Lot 4.  Mr. Rue said he would appreciate assurance from staff that Anka Street and Commercial 
Boulevard provide adequate access into the back industrial area as they move ahead with the smaller 
subdivision.  His sense is that it does, but he felt the speakers provided good points, and he asked the 
Commission to keep in mind the testifiers had a homegrown industry that they should not cut off at the 
knees, and instead should be supportive.  He said he would make sure the access roads are adequate to 
accommodate future development, so he appreciated their concerns.  Ms. Gladziszewski said they have 
held many past discussions pertaining to the scarcity of industrial land, and preserving that land for 
industrial uses. (Additional written comments on file at CBJ). 
 
MOTION – by Mr. Kendziorek to extend the Planning Commission meeting to 11:30 p.m., pertaining to 
the rules of order stating that originally they were to end at 11:00 p.m., and asked for unanimous 
consent. 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 20 of 26 

 
There being no objection, it was so ordered. 
 
Jim Baumgardner, 5150 Glacier Highway, Juneau, AK 99801, said regarding the Conditional Use 
permit on the major subdivision project, the first recommendation proposed was to place an 80’ ROW 
easement on the eastern boundary of Lot 1.  He recommended the PC consider extending the ROW of 
Commercial Boulevard, or Shaune Drive, or at least establishing utility corridors for those cul-de-sac 
streets to extend to the floating ROW, so they would not have to address this issue later on.  He said that 
would ensure that Commercial Boulevard would be the collector directed to the new access that was 
being considered for the project.  In consideration of the Quigley’s property, he suggested a utility 
easement be provided through Lot 1 to allow them ready access to City utility services.  Pertaining to the 
Lemon Creek Trail, Mr. Baumgardner said the trail was originally established through BLM/USFS 
ROW to establish an eastern Lemon Creek access corridor up through the Lemon Creek Valley.  He said 
the Conditional Use permit in Recommendation 2 would require the Applicant, to re-route Lemon Creek 
trail around or through the cut backslope in a manner that meets the standards for USFS trails of this 
type.  He said he has not found any correspondence in the consideration of the project that the USFS has 
elected to vacate that particular ROW.  He did not believe the CBJ had the jurisdiction to re-route the 
Lemon Creek Trail unilaterally in the Conditional Use permit, so he felt that for Recommendation 2 to 
stand, more work would be required pertaining to the USFS.   
 
Keith Kaiser, 10585 Glacier Highway, Juneau, AK 99801, said his family traded some of the property 
from the West Mendenhall Valley area for property in the Costco area years ago.  On the side of where 
Commercial Boulevard extends onto Lot 1, he said there is a row of lots where he has been digging in 
preparation for the first development.  The elevations that would be developed would place water back 
into Vanderbilt Creek.  He assumed there would be a large, underground storm drain that could be 
extended through three acres from the highest grade of wetlands.  He felt the City would benefit greatly 
from not only the Home Depot store, but also the wetlands.  If they choose to develop lots, he said they 
would also be benefiting from the tax revenue.  Mr. Kaiser was sure the USFS wanted to see a better 
trailhead access for the Lemon Creek Trail. 
 
Public Testimony was closed. 
 
Mr. Bishop said pertaining to USE2005-00056 under Condition 7; he recommended changing the 
language from, “all required improvements,” rather to “all other improvements.” 
 
Commission action 
Mr. Kendziorek asked pertaining to the Commercial and Industrial Zones, why staff does not list that as 
Retail in an Industrial Zone.  Mr. Pernula said this is a question about the allocation of the limited 
resource for Industrial or Commercial Uses.  When the City decided to write an Industrial Ordinance 
applying to that area, they did not allocate it strictly for Industrial Uses.  It also permitted through a 
Conditional Use permit process for Retail Commercial uses, so it was not strictly allocated for Industrial 
Uses.  Mr. Rue said as a general notion that they should separate Uses that might be incompatible, and 
there are some Industrial Uses such as fiberglass plants, etc. that make a lot of noise that you may not 
want next to a retail store. 
 
Mr. Rue asked that Recommendation 1 be amended regarding USE2005-00056, at the end of the first 
sentence to read, “The study will address the suggestions by ADF&G for constructing a wetland as one 
method to treat water, and also look at water from the parking lot as well as the roof.” He also added the 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 21 of 26 

language, “that the final approval would be by the CBJ CDD Director, USF&G and DNR.”  He said the 
State Statutes state that when changing the flow on an anadromous stream, they would be required to 
obtain a permit from ADF&G or DNR to add flow, or take flow away.  Mr. Bishop said when they place 
Conditions on permits that require the authorizations of other regulatory agencies that it generally 
becomes problematic, so they stay away from doing so if they can.  Staff does consult with them, but 
generally speaking they do not want to require their authority for approval of Conditions.  Mr. Rue said, 
then staff should ask those agencies if they require a permit to change the flow of an anadromous 
stream, which is what they intend to do.  Mr. Kendziorek said he would instead insert language to 
identify the purpose of the study pertaining to the Condition, so he suggested at the end of the first 
sentence they add, “to protect and enhance Vanderbilt Creek and the associate wetlands.”  Mr. Rue 
suggested at the end of that statement, “in consultation with the regulatory agencies.”  Mr. Kendziorek 
said that was fine. 
 
Staff recommendation that the Planning Commission adopt the Director's analysis and findings and grant the 
approval to the requested Preliminary Plat application for a major subdivision of Tract A & B of USS 7297; and 
Tract 4-A, A.S.L.S 2004-22 into Tracts 1, 2,3 & 4 of HDK Subdivision. We also recommend that the Assembly 
dedicate the necessary resources to initiate the planning & design for a second access into the Lemon Creek 
Industrial area. Given that Home Depot has expressed their intention to dedicate Lot 1 within the proposed HDK 
Subdivision, and given the environmental sensitivity of this land, we fully support this dedication and recommend 
it be accepted.  We further recommend that the approval be subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. An 80-foot floating ROW easement shall be dedicated adjacent to the eastern boundary of Lot 1 
(exact location is subject to CBJ CDD approval), prior to final plat approval. In the event that 
CBJ and Home Depot reach a binding agreement for the transfer of Lot 1 to CBJ prior to final 
platting this condition will be null and void. 

2. Develop Best Management Practices (BMPs) to maintain the integrity, stability, and flow paths of the 
streams on the subject property. 

3.  Prior to final plat approval the developer shall submit plans for utility services, and a detailed drainage 
report showing peak discharge quantities from the proposed subdivision, and accompanying plans 
illustrating where the stormwater will be routed. 

4. Prior to final plat approval, all required improvements shall be designed in accordance with the CBJ, and 
other applicable standards and specifications, as determined by the CBJ Engineering Department. 

5. Prior to final plat recording, the plat shall receive a final technical review by the CBJ Engineering 
Department to ensure the plat is in conformance with required surveying standards. 

6. All subdivision improvements must be constructed or bonded for, prior to final plat recording. 
7. Prior to any site preparation or construction activity, the Applicant shall obtain a grading permit or public 

facility and transmission (pft) permit, issued by the Community Development Department. 
8.  Prior to issuance of a grading permit or pft, the Applicant shall submit a detailed development schedule 

for excavation, utility installation, erosion/sediment control device installation, slope protection/ 
vegetation placement, and project completion. 

9. Prior to issuance of a grading permit or pft, the Applicant shall submit a detailed erosion/sediment control 
plan that identifies types and locations of control devices, how these would be monitored and maintained. 

10. At the CBJ Engineer’s discretion, the grading/excavation work may be halted during periods of very wet 
soil conditions. 

11. Prior to issuance of a grading permit or pft, the Applicant shall submit a detailed site-grading plan, which 
shows how excavation and exposure of disturbed soil would be minimized and how the effects thereof 
would be mitigated. 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 22 of 26 

12. If any material is moved and stockpiled on the project site, the Applicant shall identify such locations and 
develop appropriate measures for soil erosion/sediment controls that shall be reviewed and approved by 
the CBJ Engineering Department. 

 13. The Applicant shall place soil matting or hydro mulching on all cut and fill slopes, as soon as practicable, 
after slopes are exposed or graded. All soil matting and hydro mulching shall be left in place until 
permanent vegetation has been established. 

 
MOTION – by Mr. Kendziorek, to move SUB2005-00055, to adopt staff’s findings, analysis and 
recommendations, and asked for unanimous consent. 
 
FRIENDLY AMENDMENT – by Ms. Gladziszewski that Condition 1, after the comma in the first 
sentence to add, “and an easement for the extension of Shaune Drive to such previously described 
easement.”  Mr. Kendziorek accepted that as a friendly amendment. 
 
FRIENDLY AMENDMENT – by Ms. Waterman, to allow after the results of the hydrologic tests the 
reconfiguration of Lot 2 and its further subdivision.  Mr. Bishop said that would not have to be 
subdivided, as that could be an easement on the Lot 2 if she was looking for the inclusion of stormwater 
enhancement provisions.  FRIENDLY AMENDMENT WITHDRAWN – by Ms. Waterman. 
 
Mr. Kendziorek clarified that the motion stands, with the change to Condition 1 pertaining to the ROW.  
The Commissioners agreed. 
 
There being no objection, SUB2005-00055 was approved. 
 
USE2005-00056 
A Conditional Use permit to construct a new Home Depot retail center in an industrial zoning district. 
Location: Commercial Boulevard 
Applicant: RPDC Inc. 
 
Staff report 
Provided earlier in the meeting. 
 
Staff recommendation that the Planning Commission adopt the Director's analysis and findings and 
grant the requested Conditional Use permit.  The permit would allow the development of a Home Depot 
retail center, as shown in project drawings and description, in an industrial zoning district.  The approval 
is subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Applicant shall hire a qualified consultant to conduct a hydrologic study of the subject area to 
determine how stormwater drainage should be routed, and treated. The study and treatment plan shall 
be submitted to the director of the Community Development Department for approval prior to the 
issuance of any building or grading permits. Following such approval, the drainage plans must be 
included in the project plans. 

2. The Applicant shall reroute the Lemon Creek Trail around or through the cut backslope in a manner 
that meets the standards for USFS trails of this type. As an alternative, and with the approval of the 
USFS, the Applicant may abandon the trail section impacted by the cut slope and create a new trailhead 
at the end of Commercial Boulevard, and construct a new access route up the cut slope to a point of 
intersection with the old trail. 

3. The Applicant must submit engineered drawings for the backslope on the eastern edge of the project 
limits. Such plans must show: slope stabilization measures, drainage control devises, and re-vegetation 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 23 of 26 

plan. These plans must be completed and approved by the CBJ Engineering Department prior to the 
issuance of any building or grading permit. 

4. The Applicant's final site illumination plan shall limit off site glare to the maximum extent possible. 
5. The Applicant must make the traffic mitigation improvements to Anka Street, and Glacier Highway, as 

detailed in the traffic mitigation plan shown in the attached December 20th memorandum from 
Transpo, and with CBJ approval of the final engineered drawings. These improvements must be 
completed prior to issuance of a Temporary or final Certificate of Occupancy for the proposed Home 
Depot. 

6. The final design for the traffic improvements on Glacier Highway (referenced in Condition #5) must 
meet with ADOT/PF approval prior to construction. 

7. All other required improvements must be completed prior to issuance of Temporary or final Certificate 
of Occupancy. 

8. Advisory: the Applicant will need to submit an application for any permanent business signs. 
 9. Advisory: the Applicant will need to file a stormwater pollution and prevention plan with ADEC. 

 
MOTION – by Mr. Kendziorek to move USE2005-00056 for the Conditional Use, to adopt staff’s 
findings and analysis, with changes to the Condition 1, adding at to the end of the first sentence, after 
the word ‘treated,’ to read, “to protect and enhance Vanderbilt Creek and the associated wetlands.”  In 
the next sentence before the word ‘prior,’ add, “submitted after consultation with ADF&G and DNR.”  
In Condition 7, they are striking the word “other”, to read, “All required improvements must be 
completed prior to issuance of Temporary or final Certificate of Occupancy.”  Condition 2 would be 
modified as Mr. Bishop prescribed earlier in his staff report.  A new Condition 10 was added per the 
staff report. 
 
Ms. Gladziszewski clarified that the Applicant would consult with the agencies, and not the CBJ CDD 
Director.  Mr. Bishop said that was not a bad idea, as they would be consulting with them anyway. 
 
FRIENDLY AMENDMENT – by Ms. Waterman for a new Condition 11 that would require the Applicant 
and CBJ and to conclude the hydrologic study before the sale or any sort of disposition of Lot 2, as described 
in Condition 1.  Mr. Kendziorek asked if staff had any comments.  Mr. Pernula said that was a separate lot and 
Lot 2 was not in the Condition Use permit they were dealing with.  Mr. Pernula said they could have made it a 
Condition of the subdivision plat; however, there was a problem with that as well.  He said after a preliminary 
plat is approved, they are stating that piece of land as it was configured is ready for sale.  FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT WITHDRAWN – by Ms. Waterman. 
 
Ms. Waterman asked Mr. Bishop about the public comment on Condition 2, and adding some type of 
language that incorporates the owner and manager of the Lemon Creek Trail in making the decision 
pertaining to the re-routing, and asked if he felt they had done that by naming the USFS.  Mr. Bishop 
said he believed they had. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
Yeas  Satre, Gladziszewski, Kendziorek, Waterman, Bruce, Rue, Snow 
Nays   
 
Motion passes 7:0. 
 
Mr. Bruce adjourned the Planning Commission meeting and convened the Board of Adjustment. 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 24 of 26 

 
X. BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
VAR2005-00059 
A Variance request to reduce the off street parking requirements to 1 space per 213 square feet of store 
area (481 spaces), from 1 space per 200 square feet of store area (512 spaces). 
Location:  Lemon Creek Tract 
Applicant:  RPDC Inc. 
 
Staff report  
Provided earlier in the meeting. 
 
Staff recommendation that the Board of Adjustment adopt the Director’s analysis and findings and 
approve the requested parking Variance. The Variance would allow for a total of 481 parking spaces 
when 629 parking spaces are required.  The approval is subject to the following recommended 
condition: 

1. No storage or sale of any merchandise or materials (including container vans, gardening and 
landscaping supplies) is permitted outside of areas designated on the approved site plan.  
Violations will be punishable as an infraction of CBJ §49.10.640(a). 

 
Board action 
In relation to reducing the parking spaces, Mr. Pernula said he had seen a number of appeals to the court, as well 
as to the Assembly, pertaining to notices on issues, whereby the notice said one thing and they went beyond that 
scope.  To avoid doing that, he said that Home Depot was willing to designate an area to landscaping that might 
allow them to reduce the parking down to 480, and would still allow for 80 spaces to be temporarily landscaped.  
Therefore, at a later date if Home Depot requires additional space, that the 80 space area could be later converted 
to parking if it was needed.  Ms. Gladziszewski said she did not want them to save the space for parking, but 
instead wanted them to move the entire building over that area.  Mr. Kendziorek added that the Applicant felt that 
could be a possibility.  He said they could re-notice to allow the Applicant time to consider reducing the parking 
to 403 spaces and allow them to make the adjustment.  Mr. Pernula said his original suggestion was to landscape 
that area temporarily, but in the meantime, the Applicant could apply for a Variance.  He said it was too late to get 
a Conditional Use on the next agenda because of the notice requirements, etc., so it would be a month or so before 
they would be able do that.  If it was only a Variance, that might be possible to do at the next meeting.  Ms. 
Gladziszewski would like to know if continuing the matter to a later meeting would pose a problem for the 
Applicant. 
 
Recess from 11:35 p.m. to 11:38 p.m. 
 
Mr. Kendziorek added language at the end of the second sentence in staff’s Recommendation to read, “Of the 481 
parking spaces, up to 78 additional spaces may be used temporarily for landscaping until such time as the CBJ 
CDD Director determines they are needed for parking, the purpose for the temporary status is to allow the 
movement of the building to the north and the reduction of the pavement until it is deemed necessary.”  Ms. 
Waterman asked what the trigger would be for the necessity of paving.  Mr. Pernula said if they did not have 
adequate parking on their site, and the City begins receiving complaints they would visit the site, and if no parking 
spaces were available, that would be the trigger.  In the meantime, if they wished they could apply for a Variance 
without a trigger.   
 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 25 of 26 

MOTION – by Mr. Kendziorek, to approve VAR2005-00059, to adopt staff’s findings and analysis, including the 
added recommendation as stated above.   
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
Yeas  Satre, Gladziszewski, Kendziorek, Waterman, Bruce, Rue, Snow 
Nays   
 
Motion passes 7:0. 
 
Mr. Bruce adjourned the Board of Adjustment, and reconvened the PC meeting. 
 
Chair Pusich returned to his seat on the Commission. 
 
XI.  OTHER BUSINESS - None 
 
 (Note:  Written comments on file at CBJ from Scott Balovich regarding Accessory Apartment, 

USE2005-00043). 
 
XII. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
Historic District Standards  
Mr. Pernula said they hired a consultant from Boulder, Colorado, that would be in Juneau from January 
25 to 27, 2005.  He provided different options for the PC’s involvement, and it was the consensus of the 
Commissioners to meet on January 25, 2005 at 5:00 p.m. along with the HRAC members and the 
consultant at the City Museum.  Mr. Pernula offered to send an email reminder beforehand.  Ms. 
Waterman said she would not be attending. 
 
Mr. Pusich said the consultant would ask for comments from the public, the PC and the HRAC 
pertaining to the Historic District, the standards, and how they could be improved. 
 
Title 49 Committee Update 
Mr. Pernula said the Title 49 Committee was mainly looking at the various inconsistencies in the Code, 
the problems with language, etc.  He said there are many other changes to Title 49 that they would be 
reviewing periodically.  He asked if there were new issues such as parking, and if they should go in front 
of the Title 49 Committee or the Committee of the Whole (COW).  His concern was if those issues went 
in front of the Title 49 Committee, they would have to bring those concerns back up again to the PC.  
Ms. Waterman suggested that staff provide a list of issues that are in front of the Title 49 Committee to 
the PC, to prime the PC, thereby running the concepts through them first.  Mr. Pernula clarified that the 
Title 49 Committee would then decide if the issues should go through the COW, rather than the Title 49 
Committee.  Ms. Gladziszewski said if Mr. Pernula felt it might be useful to take issues to the Title 49 
Committee then he should do so; or not.  Ms. Waterman asked if the Commissioners could submit their 
suggestions directly to Mr. Pernula.  Mr. Pernula said yes. 
 
Parke Appeal 
Mr. Pernula sent a copy of the recent decision via email to the Commissioners earlier in the afternoon.  
Chair Pusich said they upheld their decision. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10, 2006 Page 26 of 26 

Juneau Comprehensive Plan Update Material 
Mr. Pernula said he provided a separate packet of material tonight for the Commissioners to review 
separately.  He said the meeting was scheduled for next Tuesday, January 17, 2005, from 5:30 to 7:30 
p.m. 
 
Providing Information to HRAC 
Mr. Pernula said that Susan Marvin from the HRAC spoke tonight about not receiving information 
relative to the zipline permit.  He said staff would now provide HRAC the opportunity to comment on 
any issue, as they have not done so in the past.  He said they did not know what to base that on, and they 
have sent them information relative to the Historic district, but there are many sites that are designated 
on their draft plan that were never adopted.  Chair Pusich asked that staff keep them in the loop as best 
they can. 
 
XIII. REPORT OF REGULAR AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
 
Ms. Waterman said the Title 49 Subcommittee met earlier in the evening. 
 
Mr. Bruce said the Public Works Board met on Monday and they discussed renovations, which would 
now move onto the Assembly. 
 
Mr. Kendziorek reported that the Wetland Review Board met last week and approved the Duck Creek 
portion of the Mitigation Bank Plan, which now would move through the City Manager and then onto 
the Assembly.  He said it was a major milestone they had been working on over the past 30 years. 
 
XIV. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS - None 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION – by Mr. Bruce, to adjourn the meeting. 
 
There being no objection, the meeting adjourned at 12: 14 a.m. 


	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	III.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS - None
	IV.  PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORT - None
	V.  RECONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS - None
	VI.  CONSENT AGENDA
	USE2005-00054

	VII. CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - None
	VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None
	IX.  REGULAR AGENDA
	INQ-0000002
	Staff report 
	Public testimony - None
	CBJ Comprehensive Plan Update




	X. BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - None
	XI.  OTHER BUSINESS - None
	XII. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	Chairperson and Vice Chairperson assignment for the Title 49 Committee

	XIV. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	XV. ADJOURNMENT

